TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Monday, 8th March, 2021

Present:

Cllr D Lettington (Vice-Chairman - in the Chair), Cllr R P Betts, Cllr V M C Branson, Cllr D A S Davis, Cllr N G Stapleton and Cllr M Taylor and County Councillors Mrs T Dean, Mrs S Hohler, Mr R Long, Mr M Payne and Mr H Rayner

Borough Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, Mrs S Bell, M D Boughton, G C Bridge, C Brown, R I B Cannon, A E Clark, N J Heslop, M A J Hood, F A Hoskins, S A Hudson, J R S Lark, B J Luker, P J Montague, Mrs A S Oakley, M R Rhodes, H S Rogers, R V Roud, T B Shaw, K B Tanner and D Thornewell were also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21. Mrs S Barker and Mrs W Palmer were also present on behalf of the Kent Association of Local Councils (KALC)

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor Mr M Balfour (Chairman) and from Borough Councillor A Kennedy

PART 1 - PUBLIC

JTB 21/1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in accordance with the Code of Conduct. In the interest of transparency County Councillor T Dean advised that she had promoted the proposed reduction in speed limits to various roads in Larkfield and intended to use the local County Members Combined Member Grant to fund its implementation (Minute number JTB 21/6 refers).

JTB 21/2 MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held on 21 September 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

JTB 21/3 CHANGES TO ON-STREET PARKING FEES AND CHARGES

The report of the Director of Street Scene, Leisure and Technical Services provided an update on the outcome of the formal consultation undertaken between 27 November and 21 December 2020 in respect of proposed changes to the Traffic Regulation Order regarding On-Street Parking Fees and Charges.

RECOMMENDED: That

- (1) in relation to the on-street Pay & Display charges, the Borough Cabinet note that there were no objections and agree to make the Traffic Regulation Order to facilitate the change to charges in line with the recommendation made by the Street Scene and Environment Services Advisory Board at its meeting held on 30 October 2019; and
- (2) in relation to the on-street permit charges, the Borough Cabinet note that there were a significant number of responses, set aside the objections and agree to make the Traffic Regulation Order to facilitate the change to charges in line with the recommendation made by the Street Scene and Environment Services Advisory Board at its meeting held on 30 October 2019.

*Referred to Cabinet

JTB 21/4 PARKING ACTION PLAN - PHASE 12

(Decision Notice D210034MEM)

The report of the Director of Street Scene, Leisure and Technical Services presented the outcome of the investigation and informal consultation stages of 19 parking restriction proposals contained in Phase 12 of the Parking Action Plan. The report sought approval to proceed to formal consultation in respect of 10 locations and invited consideration of whether the schemes at Wyvern Close, Snodland (Location Ref: 12-07) and Gorham Drive, Tonbridge (Location Ref: 12-08) should be abandoned or proceed to formal consultation.

RECOMMENDED: That, subject to the inclusion of the schemes at Wyvern Close, Snodland and Gorham Drive, Tonbridge in the formal consultation, the recommendations for each location in Phase 12 shown in Annex 1 to the report be adopted and, where appropriate, the proposals be taken forward to formal consultation.

JTB 21/5 PARKING ACTION PLAN - ACCESS GROUP 3 AND ACCESS GROUP 4

(Decision Notice D210035MEM)

The report of the Director of Street Scene, Leisure and Technical Services presented the outcome of the formal consultation on proposals contained in the Access Group 3 and Access Group 4 subsets of the Parking Action Plan where a streamlined process had been applied to the consideration and promotion of minor changes to the Traffic Regulation Order.

RECOMMENDED: That, subject to the removal of the proposal to provide double yellow lines across a dropped kerb at 37 West Street, Wrotham, the recommendations for each location in Access Group 4 shown in Annex 1 to the report be adopted and, where appropriate, the proposals be implemented.

JTB 21/6 LARKFIELD - PROPOSED SPEED LIMIT CHANGES TO VARIOUS ROADS IN THE DISTRICT OF TONBRIDGE AND MALLING

The report of the Head of Transportation, Kent County Council, provided details of a consultation undertaken between 8 January and 1 February 2021 in respect of the proposed reduction in current speed limits to 20mph on 84 roads within Larkfield to encourage driver compliance with lower speeds and, thereby, making the local road network safer for all methods of transport. It was noted that, due to the potential scale of the scheme and the availability of funding via the local County Member Combined Member Grant, a phased approach would be required to the implementation of the scheme. Details of the locations which required minimal signing and lining to provide a 20mph speed limit were set out in Appendix A to the report (identified as blue routes) and it was noted that any proposals for traffic calming features on red routes, apart from signage and road markings, should be subject to further consultation.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the proposals set out in the report be taken forward to detailed design and implementation;
- (2) a phased approach to implementation be adopted, with the extent of the reduced speed limit dependent on the availability of funding; and
- (3) any proposals for traffic calming features on red routes, apart from signage and road markings, be subject to further consultation.

JTB 21/7 KENT STREET IMPROVEMENT SCHEME

The report of the Head of Transportation, Kent County Council, provided an update on the development of outline design options to improve the road and junction alignment at Kent Street, Mereworth. The Board was reminded that funds for 'Local Traffic Management and Calming' had been secured through a S106 agreement in respect of Kings Hill. Details of four options aimed at improving visibility at the Kent Street junction with the A228 were set out in the report and Members expressed a preference for Option 4. It was noted that this option, at an estimated scheme cost of between £1,000,000 to £1,200,000, exceeded the funding of £826,609 available for the design and construction of the Kent Street improvements. It was acknowledged that a phased approach could be adopted if further funding became available. The Board was

advised that negotiations with the landowner were at an early stage and would require further, detailed consideration. The Board requested that the local County and Borough Members and Parish Councils be consulted on the detailed design.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the options outlined in the report be noted and approval be given to progress Option 4 as the preferred option to detailed design, pending land negotiations; and
- (2) a report on the detailed design be submitted to a future meeting of the Joint Transportation Board.

MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION

JTB 21/8 COLDHARBOUR ROUNDABOUT AND A20 LONDON ROAD

The Senior Project Manager for the Major Capital Programme Team, KCC, provided an update on the Coldharbour Roundabout scheme due to commence construction in May/June 2021. In addition, he outlined the proposals for the junction of the A20 with the Aylesford Retail Park, advised that the online consultation would close on 18 March 2021 and anticipated that construction would commence in the summer.

JTB 21/9 HIGHWAYS FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

The report of KCC Highways, Transportation and Waste summarised the schemes programmed for delivery in 2021/22 and provided updates on the Road, Footway and Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Schemes (Appendix A), Drainage Repairs and Improvements (Appendix B), Street Lighting (Appendix C), Transportation and Safety Schemes (Appendix D), Developer Funded Works (Appendix E), Bridge Works (Appendix F), Traffic Systems (Appendix G) and the Combined Member Grant programme (Appendix H). It was noted that the programme was subject to regular review. The Tonbridge and Malling District Manager offered to respond direct to Members on a number of matters identified at the meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and noted.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE

JTB 21/10 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no items considered in private.

The meeting ended at 8.51 pm